
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, November 13, 2024 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/3YzomFp 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       GABE GALBRAITH 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition 
A. Veteran’s Day DR. TRACI PIERCE 
B. Native American Heritage Month DR. TRACI PIERCE 
C. Foreign Exchange Students BJ WILSON 

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting October 23, 2024 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 

 
 Business Office Items 

A. Budget Status Report Ending August 31, 2024 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending August 31, 2024 
 

 Capital Projects Items 
A. Resolution No. 1, 2024-2025: Accept Tri-Tech Skills Center Building Project 

as Complete 
B. Resolution No. 2, 2024-2025: Accept Tri-Tech Skills Center Building “C” 

Project Commissioning Report  
 
6. Communications Follow-up 

 
7. Superintendent/Board Member Report 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3YzomFp&data=05%7C02%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C84d0c1b30e8d4576297f08dcf469a469%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638653981772754215%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yceUmYLoVZrqV1iVDkvmfQ6RaqsE2TuDicXXpIPXIP8%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

  
8. Reports and Discussions 

A. Children’s Reading Foundation of the Mid-Columbia       LEANNE LUEHRS-  
                                                                                                             PURCELL  
                                                                                                                                     Executive Director  

B. School Improvement Plan Monitoring Processes                MATT SCOTT  
 ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE 

C. Choice Schools and Programs               MATT SCOTT  
D. 2025 Legislative Priorities  DR. TRACI PIERCE 

 
9. Unfinished Business 

None 
 

10. New Business 
A. Policy No. 2315 INSTRUCTION: Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy  
B. Policy No. 2313 INSTRUCTION: Electronic Resources and Internet Safety 

 ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE 
  

11. Next Meeting Agenda 
A. Officer Elections 
B. 2023-24 Financial Closeout 
C. Tri-Tech Skills Center Annual Report  
D. Delta High School Annual Report  
E. Student Goal Report: All Students Are Ready for Their Future 

 
12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building 
October 23, 2024 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Gabe Galbraith, President of the Board; Micah Valentine, Vice 
President of the Board; Brittany Gledhill, Legislative Representative of the Board; Mike 
Connors, Board Member; Annie Maltos, Student Representative to the Board; and Dr. 
Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the Board.  

 
Student Representative-Elect: Diego Anguiano 
 
Cabinet Members: Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. 
Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Vic Roberts, Executive 
Director of Business Operations; Dr. Thomas Brillhart, Assistant Superintendent of 
Operations; and Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public 
Relations.   
 
Excused: Dr. Josh Miller, Board Member 
  Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 53 online and in-person staff and guests. 
 

Motion by Micah Valentine to excuse Board member Dr. Josh Miller. 
 

  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 De Anna Winterrose commented on the need for well-trained special education staff.  
 
 Nikki Zimmerman commented on the need for well-trained staff to work with students 

with special needs.  
 Chuck Henager commented on an article in the Tri-City Herald regarding achievement 

scores. 
 
 Alicia Mackenzie commented on special education. 
 
 Kacey K. commented on the canal bridge providing access to Washington Elementary 



Minutes 
October 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

School. 
 
 Paul Jewell commented on the safety of the canal bridge providing access to Washington 

Elementary School and the trees along the property. 
  
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Mike Connors to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes  
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting October 9, 2024 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• School Improvement Plans 2024-25 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FOLLOW UP 
 

 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce stated that she would convene with her team to address the 
concerns raised during this evening’s session and provide an update at the next Board 
meeting. Dr. Pierce indicated that the district is in ongoing communication with both 
irrigation districts regarding existing structures and staff is engaged in dialogue with those 
agencies about the concerns. She expressed that she hoped to have additional information to 
share with the Board soon. . 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Student Representative to the Board Annie Maltos reported attending the Superintendent 

Student Advisory Council Meeting.  
 
 Dr. Pierce reported visiting Southridge, Sage Crest, Eastgate, Highlands, Southgate, and 

Lincoln. She also noted that the district hosted a legislative tour focused on facilities. She 
also shared that she and Mr. Connors had a recent conversation with regarding work-place 
learning, and she shared that Representative April Connors would be hosting a work-source 
development group at Tri-Tech to discuss looking at the laws and rules to enhance the 
employability of 16 and 17-year-olds.    

  
 Board Member Brittany Gledhill reported visiting Amistad Elementary and attending 

legislative tour, which included visits to Ridge View and Hawthorne Elementary schools. 
 



Minutes 
October 23, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported visiting Southridge High School and Desert Hills 

Middle School.  
 
 President Gabe Galbraith reported communicating with a handful of parents and talking 

with Dr. Pierce. 
 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Enrollment Update 
  

Vic Roberts, Executive Director of Business Operations, presented current and historical 
student enrollment data.  

 
 Highly Capable Program Update 
  

Alyssa St. Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning, presented an update 
on highly capable services. 
 

 Career and College Readiness and Career and Technical Education 
  

Superintendent Dr. Pierce, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education Matt Scott, and 
Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning Alyssa St. Hilaire presented an 
overview of how the High School and Beyond Plan process can be optimized to help 
realize our mission for every student. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Policy No. 9325 SCHOOL FACILITIES: Advertising on District Property, First Reading 
 
 Dr. Pierce presented a new policy on advertising on district property, which is part of 

WSSDA’s “Discretionary” policy package.   
  
 Motion by Brittany Gledhill to approve Policy No. 9325 SCHOOL FACILITIES: 

Advertising on District Property for first and second reading. 
 
 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  n/a 
 

   Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 



Minutes 
October 23, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 

Policy No. 3206 STUDENTS: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment of Students 
Prohibited, First Reading 

 
 Dr. Thomas Brillhart presented updates to Policy No. 3206 to align with WSSDA model 

policy and to comply with state and new federal nondiscrimination and Title IX laws.  
 
 Motion by Brittany Gledhill to approve Policy No. 3206 STUDENTS: Sex Discrimination 

and Sex-Based Harassment of Students Prohibited for first and second reading. 
 
 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  Yes 
 

   Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 

Policy No. 5013 STAFF: Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment of District Staff 
Prohibited, First Reading 

 
 Dr. Brillhart presented updates to Policy No. 5013 to align with the WSSDA model policy 

and to comply with state and new federal nondiscrimination and Title IX laws.   
 
 Motion by Brittany Gledhill to approve Policy No. 5013 STAFF: Sex Discrimination and 

Sex-Based Harassment of District Staff Prohibited for first and second readings. 
 
 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  Yes 
 

   Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. Study Session 
1. Bond Refunding Process and Planning 

 
B. Business Meeting 



Minutes 
October 23, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 

1. Legislative Priorities 
2. Children’s Reading Foundation of the Mid-Columbia 
3. Choice Schools and Programs 
4. Policy Updates 

  
There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  November 13, 2024 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Adriana Chavez SrHS Teacher - HS Spec Srvcs Requesting .20 LOA 1.0 to .80 2024-25

Daicee Humphrey Park MS Teacher - MS Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff. 2/26 - 

5/26/25

Delanie Sommers SrHS Teacher - HS  Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff. 11/26-
2/15/2025

Sydney Hendry KeHS Teacher - HS Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff 4/11-

6/12/2025

Victoria Mackay Special Services Speech Language Pathologist Requesting LOA 0.6
Eff. 1/29 - 

8/8/25

Shelby Fulton Cascade Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff. 4/11-

8/8/25

Lisa Steinman Washington Teacher - Elem 1.0 1/6/2025

Miranda McCombs K-12 Sub Nurse to Nurse Thomas resignation 1.0 Eff. 11/13/24

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE: Wednesday, November 13, 2024

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

11/13/2024 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Kara Stevens Sunset View Para/BE/Temporary
Program need for 24-25 

school year
6.0 10/24/2024

Brian Pochert K-12 School Safety Officer Program need 7.5 11/1/2024

Ayan Garcia
Horse Heaven 

Hills

Para/SS/1-1 for Student with 

Disability
Student need 6.0 11/4/2024

Julia Gamez Operations
Public Records Officer/Records 

& Grants Coordinator
District Need 8.0 11/8/2024

Emily Armstrong Chinook
Para/SS/1-1 for Student with 

Disability
Student need 6.0 11/12/2024

Hanan Osman Southgate Para/SS/Tier II Autism Program need 6.0 10/28/2024

Brittany Baldwin
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Cook

Replaces Jasmin 

Cohetzaltitla
6.0 10/29/2024

Michael O'Connor Transportation Bus Driver 4.42 10/24/2024

Gladys Reeder Southridge Cook Replaces Denise LaPierre 6.0 11/4/2024

Crystal Novoa-Ayala Fuerza Para/BE/Bilingual Replaces Stephanie Muniz 6.5 11/7/2024

Katie Castillo Luna Hawthorne Cook Replaces Lidia Mino 6.0 11/12/2024

Joseph Somolik Transportation Bus Driver 4.58 11/1/2024

Maria Montes de Oca Kamiakin Cook Replaces Kelly Higgins 6.0 11/13/2024

Bailee Bradley Cottonwood Para/SS/LifeSkills
Replaces Jacqui Brazell-

Denison
6.5 11/13/2024

Beatris Nesta Fuerza Para/BE/Bilingual Required
Replaces Fernanda 

Mendez
6.5 11/6/2024

Betania Marquina 

Hernandez
ECEAP Para/ECEAP Replaces Jayda Nolley 8.0 11/13/2024

Tiffany Buckenberger Park Cook Replaces Linda Williams 6.0 11/7/2024

Jocelyn Ruelas Park Para/BE/Bilingual Preferred Replaces Jeslaine Low 6.0 11/12/2024

NEW POSITONS

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: November 13, 2024

REPLACEMENT

11/13/2024 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Briana Alvarez ECEAP Para/ECEAP/Bilingual
Replaces Naomi Paup-

Lefferts
8.0 11/12/2024

Brianne Hinkle Cottonwood Para/SS/LifeSkills
Replaces Danielle 

Mungaray
6.5 11/4/2024

Christina Kangas Transportation Bus Driver 4.58 10/23/2024

Cyle DeLeon Kamiakin Para/BE Replaces Chayce Lau 6.0 10/29/2024

Kristene McCabe ECEAP Para/SS/1-1/Physically Disabled Replacaes Glena Meng 2.8 11/6/2024

DrewWarner Amon Creek Para/SS/Resource Room Program Need 6.0 11/5/2024

Robin Baker Lincoln Cook To sub bus attendant 3.0 10/29/2024

Raeshell Lutes Vista Para/BE 6.5 12/11/2024

Avery Rivera Canyon View Para/SS/LifeSkills To sub para 6.5 11/1/2024

Florence Ardon Park Para/BE Also resigning Coaching 6.0 11/8/2024

James Soule Desert Hills Para/BE To sub para 6.0 11/5/2024

Jolene George Carlson
Teaching & 

Learning
Teaching & Learning Secretary 8.0 11/15/2024

Gretchen Wilson Transportation Bus Driver 10/28/2024

Jessica Vanden Bos-

Nielsen
Transportation Bus Driver Until 11/4/2024 5.33 9/27/2024

Anna Romero Highlands Secretary Until 1/6/2025 8.0 11/8/2024

Kate Hawk Park Para/BE/Title To student teach 8.0 11/12/2024

Hannah Goff Westgate Para/FP/LAP To student teach 6.0 1/6/2025

Nosrat Rahavi Westgate Para/SS/Tier II Autism Until 12/9/2024 6.0 11/7/2024

Jose Tass Herrera Transportation Bus Driver Correction - previously  

listed as return from LOA

N/A 10/14/2024

Karin Oney Transportation Bus Driver To sub bus driver N/A 11/1/2024

Katelyn Shipley N/A Para To sub teach N/A 10/22/2024

RETURN FROM LOA Essence Estrada Cascade Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Required Replaces Ashley Santos 6.5 12/2/2024

Brittany Baldwin
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Cook 6.0 11/4/2024

Sterling Leija Desert Hills
Para/SS/2-1 for Student with 

Disability Did not work
6.0 11/5/2024

TERMINATION

RETIREMENT

RESIGNED FROM LOA

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

REHIRE

RESIGNATION

RESIGNATION CONT.

REPLACEMENT CONT.

11/13/2024 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Department New Assignment Old Assignment Date

Business Office Systems Analyst Business Office Manager 11/1/2024

IT Network Administrator Computer Application Support12/2/2024

IT Network Administrator Student Info/Help Desk 12/2/2024

IT Student Info/Help Desk Student Info/Help Desk 12/2/2024

IT IT Developer Student Info/Help Desk 12/2/2024

IT Help Desk/Field Tech IT Tech Entry / Temporary 12/2/2024

IT Help Desk/Field Tech IT Tech Entry / Temporary 12/2/2024

Stu Ross

Claire Dockter

Mark Westcott

Jocelyn Labat

Eric Rodriguez

CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENT
Name

Holly Veach

Scott Stai

11/13/2024 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   Wednesday, November 13, 2024 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Matthew Bode Southridge HS Asst Boys Wrestling New Head Coach  
2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Shannon Fetterolf Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Dance Replaces Shannon Fetterolf – Emer Hire  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Jaelyn Westlake Chinook MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Florence Ardon Park MS Head Dance Replaces Marla Martens  Hired 10/21  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Nicole Chelin Desert Hills MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Megan Deines Desert Hills MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Seth Garcia Southridge HS Asst Boys Wrestling Replaces Robert Bright     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Keennedy Storaci Park MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Replaces Brad Luce  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Reis Cope Horse Heaven Hills Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
  

Kym David Southridge HS Assistant Bowling 
Emergency Hire – Switching one year to Asst from 
Head Coach  

2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Headley, Robin Southridge HS Head Bowling Emergenc Hire – Switching one year to Head from Asst  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Ryan Engel Park MS Head Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Chris Oatis Resigned  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Andrew Low Park MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Ryan Engel – took Head Position  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Anna Ellis Southridge HS Head Cheer Emergency Hire – Split contract – Lil Barajas  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 McKell Sanderson Kamiakin HS Asst Wrestling Open Position  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
 Heriberto Mendoza Kennewick HS Assist Boys Wrestling One Year LOA 2024-2025 Sc Yr 
         2024-2025 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Chayce Lau KAMIAKIN HS Assistant Baseball Resigned 2024-25 Sc Yr 

 Chris Oatis Park MS Head Boys Baketball Resigned 2024-25 Sc Yr 
 Florence Ardon Park MS Head Dance Resigned 11/08 2024-25 Sc Yr 

 Kerri Rush Horse Heaven Hills Asst Girls Basketball Resigned 2024-25 Sc Yr 

 Ryley Kasma Chinook MS Assistant Baseball Resigned 2024-25 Sc Yr 

     2024-25 Sc Yr 

 

































 
Kennewick School District #17, 1000 W. 4th Ave., Kennewick, WA 99336 
 

     Resolution No. 1  
2024 - 2025 

 
Accept Tri-Tech Skills Center Building “C” Projects as Complete  

 

WHEREAS the work of the general contractor on the Tri-Tech Skills Center Building “C” project 
is complete, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Kennewick School District No 17, Benton 
County, Washington, Board of Directors accept the work of Banlin Construction LLC as complete 
and authorizes the release of retainage on this project. 
  
Adopted and approved this 13th day of November 2024.  
  

 

ATTEST _____________________________ _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

            
       _______________________________ 

      Vice President, Board of Directors 
             
       _______________________________ 

      Member of the Board of Directors  
 

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  
              

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  



 
Kennewick School District #17, 1000 W. 4th Ave., Kennewick, WA 99336 
 

     Resolution No. 2  
2024 - 2025 

 
Accept Tri-Tech Skills Center Building “C” Project Commissioning Report  

 
WHEREAS Kennewick School District No. 17 completed the new construction of Tri-Tech 
Skills Center Building “C” and, 

WHEREAS, Building Commissioning was performed, and a written report was completed by 
Performance Validation Inc. and 

WHEREAS, the Building Commissioning report was reviewed by District representatives,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Kennewick School 
District No. 17, Benton County, Washington, that the Building Commissioning Report for Tri-
Tech Skills Center Building C Project be accepted. 

  
Adopted and approved this 13th day of November 2024.  
  

 

ATTEST _____________________________ _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

            
       _______________________________ 

      Vice President, Board of Directors 
             
       _______________________________ 

      Member of the Board of Directors  
 

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  
              

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: November 13, 2024 

 

 

Topic Strategic Plan Goal Report: All Community Members are Important Collaborators 
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
X 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

This report is part of an annual reporting cycle intended to highlight the contributions and 
partnership with an exemplary community partner. This year’s report will once again 
provide information regarding the programs offered through our agreement with the 
Children’s Reading Foundation of the Mid-Columbia. 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
X Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Does the Board have interests or questions regarding the information presented?  

Next Steps  • N/A 



Community Partner Highlight
Mid-Columbia Reading Foundation

November 13, 2024



Topic 
Overview





ANNUAL REVIEW

Leanne Luehrs-Purcell, Executive Director
     Erin Lee, Educational Program Director



OUR MISSION



In partnership with Kennewick School District, The Children's 
Reading Foundation of Mid-Columbia has provided a 

Kindergarten Readiness Program and a 1:1 Volunteer Tutoring 
Program to their families and students since 1996. 

OUR PROGRAMS



• Self Paced E-Learning Workshops
• High-Quality Tools, Materials, and books
• Parents and caregivers empowered to be their child’s 

first, and most influential teacher
• Dedicated Outreach to ensure parent 

engagement
• Collaborative Community Partnerships



2501 parent participants for 2023-24  Contract Goal: 2500
OUR IMPACT

Provide READY! to:
⚬ English and Spanish speakers 
⚬ Migrant and Refugee families 
⚬ Economically vulnerable families 
⚬ Families with children with 

developmental needs 
⚬ Preschool families 
⚬ At-risk kindergarten students and families
⚬ Community partnerships: B5, Prepares, MCL,             

Keewaydin, Children’s Development Center, WIC,Tri 
Tech, and KSD Migrant Program








• Provides one to one 
volunteer tutoring for K-3rd 
graders in 10 elementary 

schools in KSD for the 2023-
2024 school year.

• Each school has a dedicated 
Site Coordinator to provide 

volunteer coordination, 
training, outreach and 

oversight.



446 Students participated  Contract Goal: Up to 370
OUR IMPACT

Served:
• 92 Kindergarteners
• 109 First graders
• 71 2nd graders
• 52 3rd graders +
• 39 Withdrew/moved/transferred
• 83 Graduates

120 
Volunteers!

Approx. 
5,195 total 
tutor hours!



"We’ve greatly appreciated your support 
this year! Walking the hallways and 

seeing students happily engaged with 
the Team Read volunteers has been a 
pleasure. As the year has progressed 

the students’ abilities to read with more 
confidence and excitement have grown. 
The volunteers have provided consistent 
support and a foundation on which our 
students have been able to experience 
growth and success! Thank you, Team 

Read!"
~ Joe Jones, Principal at Southgate

https://youtu.be/GoKRGM0AhEo

https://youtu.be/GoKRGM0AhEo
https://youtu.be/GoKRGM0AhEo


2024/2025 PROGRAM GOALS

• Implement New Student Pouches

• Goal of 370 students served

• Continue to make Volunteer Voice 
Newsletter more robust

• Dedicated Management to Site Coordinators 

• Revamp in-person training to make it more 
intensive and more individualized per site

• Provide workshops for up 
to 2,500 parent 
participants

• Increase Spanish-speaking 
participants by 15%, and 
retain them across all 3 
seasons

• Continue to build 
community partnerships

• Addition of “Play with 
Purpose” Playgroups



OUR LITERACY IMPACT

Open houses, Kindergarten events,
STEM and Literacy nights, Mid Columbia Libraries events,         

Summer concerts, Summer reading programs, Maternity Programs,
Back-to-school events, Community and School Book Distributions

 

Over 6,050 books were distributed in Kennewick in 
2023-2024 valued at over $21,100



Read Together 20 Minutes Every Day



Questions?

Thank you, KSD for your support and partnership!

Read20Minutes.com

ExecutiveDirector@read20minutes.com

Erin@read20minutes.com

mailto:ExecutiveDirector@read20minutes.com
mailto:Erin@read20minutes.com


 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: November 13, 2024 

 

 

Topic Board Report: School Improvement Plan Processes 
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
X 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
X 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
X 5. All community members are important collaborators   
X 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

The Board requested information regarding how School Improvement Plans are monitored 
and supported throughout the year.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
X Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Does the Board have particular interests related to School Improvement Plan 
monitoring and support process? 

Next Steps  • N/A 



School Improvement Plans
Monitoring and Support Process 

November 13, 2024



Topic 
Overview



Presentation Overview 

• School Improvement Plan 
(SIP) Overview

• SIP Components 
• Process and Timeline 
• Monitoring and Support 

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://teachonline.ca/tools-trends/designs-for-teaching-in-the-digital-age/its-all-about-design
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


School Improvement Plans

• Data driven
• Continuous improvement
• Self-review process 
• Staff, student, family 

involvement 
• Positive impact on student 

learning



SIP: Overview 

Components Process
Collaboration: Administrators, teachers, and 
parents

Data Analysis: Attendance, behavior and 
academics (reading and math)

Goal Setting: Focus efforts and help measure 
success for the school ear

Needs Assessment: Review of previous year, 
current successes and challenges

Action Plan: Creating a plan to achieve goals.  
May include training or additional resources

Implementing, Monitoring and Evaluation: 
Ongoing throughout the school year

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://teachonline.ca/tools-trends/designs-for-teaching-in-the-digital-age/its-all-about-design
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


Student-Focused SIP Goal Areas
Aligned to KSD Strategic Goals and Key Performance Indicators

Attendance Behavior Safety and 
Belonging

Engaged Learners: 
Inclusion Rate for 
Special Education 

Students

English Language 
Arts Growth & 

Proficiency
Math Growth & 

Proficiency

Ready for Their 
Future (High 

Schools)

Family and 
Community 

Engagement





SIP:  Timeline and Processes 

Mar.–May

Review data with leadership team
Work with building team to set goals 
and priorities for next school year

June

Draft SIP due before end of June

July

District reviews plans, shares 
feedback, looks for overlapping 
themes to create support and 
trainings

August

Building principals submit final plan

September

Plans are submitted to Board of 
Directors for approval

Oct.–Mar.

Buildings use plan to deliver 
trainings, monitor improvement
Regular check-ins at principal 
meetings, building visits to support 
buildings in implementation



Ongoing Implementing, Monitoring and 
Evaluation of SIP

District Led Monitoring Building Staff Led Monitoring
• District-Wide Principal Meetings
• Building Visits with Directors
• Alignment of Resources and Trainings

• Site Council
• Leadership Team
• Department Heads
• Team Leaders
• MTSS Committee











Board Comments/Questions



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: November 13, 2024 

 

 

Topic Strategic Goal Report: Choice Schools and  Programs 
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
X 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
X 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
X 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Efforts to review and refine choice schools and program offerings have been underway for 
the past two years. This report provides an update on the work that has been completed 
and current status of the efforts. 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
X Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Does the Board have particular interests related to Choice Schools and Programs and 
the 2024-25 objectives? 

Next Steps  • N/A 



Choice School and Programs

November 13, 2024



Topic 
Overview







Choice 
Schools and 

Programs • Parent Partnership Program
• Fully Online K-8 Program  Project-Based High School 

Small Alternative High School Fully Online High School 

Skills Center STEM High School 

Our goal is to provide a variety of 
unique, high-quality learning options 
within the district, so students can 
stay enrolled in KSD and access 
options and choices that meet the 
needs of students and families 



Alternative Education Models and Strategies, 
2018 Hanover Research 



Presentation 
Outline

o Overview of the Review Process and 
Focus 

o Strengths and Successes
o Challenges and Opportunities 



Review Process and Focus 

Process
• Staff and student interviews with principal

o What is working and what is not?

• Data reviews
o Attendance, Graduation, Students on Track, Perceptual

• External Consultation and Data Collection 
o Phoenix – Dr. Tracy Money, EdVisions
o Legacy – Dr. Molly Kreyssler, Bloom Coaching



Review Process and Focus 

Areas of Focus for Improvement
• Enrollment processes

o Aligned to vision

• Program design

• Graduation rate and students on track

• Attendance

• Instructional practices and student achievement





Successes and Strengths

Enrollment 
• Students accepted regardless of credits and grades

Resources
• Five student support staff to assist students
• Full time security staff to assist administration

Family and Community Partnerships
• Well attended family engagement events
• Community in Schools and Educational Service District



Challenges and Opportunities 
Results Orientation
• Improve graduation rate and students on track for 

graduation
• Improve attendance

Curriculum and Professional Development
• Clarity regarding learning standards for each course
• Engagement in teacher collaborative planning

Instructional Systems
• Increase student engagement in coursework
• Develop innovative instructional practices and 

experiences for students



2024-25 Efforts Toward Further Review and 
Refinement 

2024-25
• Researching best practices in alternative education program 

design
• Training in AVID (Advancement Via Individual Determination) 

strategies and begin implementation in all classrooms
• Addressing mindsets and implement professional learning 

team foundations to improve collaborative planning
• Evaluating the provision of specially designed instruction for 

special education staff
• Partnering with Bloom Coaching to work on student efficacy 

and High School and Beyond Planning

2025 and beyond
• Continue to research and implement best practices in 

alternative education program design
• Develop alternative courses based on student interests





Successes and Strengths

Resources
• Staffing meets the needs of students

Family and Community Partnerships
• Student learning plans are developed with family 

involvement and implemented with their support



Challenges and Opportunities 

2024-25
• Researching best practices and improving graduation rates 

in online learning models
• Improving enrollment processes
• Creating and implementing consistent policies and 

procedures to provide for student learning
• Adopting new curriculum/learning platform
• Evaluating the provision of specially designed instruction in 

the online environment for students qualified for special 
education

• Improving intervention and collaboration with families for 
struggling students

2025 and Beyond
• Continue to research and implement best practices 



2024-25 Efforts Toward Further Review and 
Refinement Results Orientation

• Improve graduation rate and students on track to 
graduate

Internal Systems
• Develop greater consistency in practices and processes 

for students in an online learning environment 

Innovative Curriculum and Professional Development
• Improve the online learning platform 

Academic Excellence
• Develop improved intervention and collaboration with 

families for struggling students





Successes and Strengths
Vision
• Project-based 
• Mastery learning 

Resources
• Support staff and community volunteers

Family and Community Partnerships
• Student learning plans with parent involvement
• Frequent home-school communication



Challenges and Opportunities
Results Orientation
• Projects vs. presentations
• Graduation rate and students on track for graduation

Innovative Curriculum and Professional Development
• Math instruction

Academic Excellence
• Improve interventions
• Credit recovery

Instructional Systems
• Utilization of instructional tools and labs



2024-25 Efforts Toward Further Review and 
Refinement 

2024-25
• Re-implementation of Student Expos
• Continue program model review with Big Picture Schools for 

best instructional practices
• Improve the use of the district learning management system, 

Schoology, and PowerSchool to track credits and grades
• Addressing student attendance via parent contact at each 

absence

2025 and Beyond
• Research, develop and implement options for “in-person” 

math instruction
• Act on recommendations from Big Picture Schools
• Re-implement student internship program



Board Comments/Questions



LEGISLATIVE
PRIORITIES

2025

We applaud the legislature’s effort to provide more adequate and equitable funding for school districts. We
ask the legislature to continue to attend to its paramount duty to provide full funding and support for basic
education in the state of Washington. We look forward to working with you to advance the state’s
commitment to public education and to engage students and parents in decision making.

Fully Fund Basic Education
Address the significant underfunding of allocations for Materials, Supplies and Operating Costs
(MSOCs).
Fund the full cost of providing special education services.
Fix the pupil transportation formula to ensure it is more transparent, predictable and adequately
funded.

Ensure Student Safety and Academic Success
Update staffing ratios in the Prototypical School Funding Model to amply fund instructional staff,
support staff and administrative staff.
Amply fund the implementation of multi-tiered systems of support for behavior and academics.
Support and fund Career and Technical Education, Highly Capable and Accelerated Programs.

Support Capital Facilities
Update the School Construction Assistance Program (SCAP) funding formula from pre-1979 standards
to reflect actual construction costs, educational needs and legislative class-size languages.
Propose a constitutional amendment to eliminate the supermajority requirement and allow for
simple majority passage of school construction bonds.

Enhance Local Support and Local Control
Require new K-12 legislation to include estimated fiscal impact and eliminate mandates if no new
funding is appropriated.
Support legislation that promotes local Board authority and control.
Amply fund Local Effort Assistance (LEA) and reform levy authority.

Board of Directors
Mr. Gabe Galbraith
President

Mr. Micah Valentine
Vice President

Dr. Traci Pierce
Superintendent

Annie Maltos
Student
Representative

Ms. Brittany Gledhill
Legislative
Representative

Mr. Michael Connors
Director

Dr. Josh Miller
Director

Our Mission
To provide a safe environment in which all students reach their highest potential and graduate well prepared
for success in post-secondary education, work and life.



2315 

INSTRUCTION 

Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy 

In recognition of the fact that students use technology to play, learn, and communicate while at 
home and at school, it is important that they learn how to use that technology responsibly. The 
district is committed to educating every student on how to use technology in ways that augment 
their learning experience, leading to analysis, evaluation, reflection, and enhanced skills of 
expression. As the district’s educators guide exploration of the digital landscape, they will 
encourage students to be critical and creative thinkers. Students, in turn, are expected to actively 
engage with and express their voices in the digital landscape. 

Definitions 

The district is dedicated to promoting and instilling principles of digital citizenship and media 
literacy in each of its students.  

A. Digital Citizenship 

Digital citizenship includes the norms of appropriate, responsible, and healthy behavior 
related to current technology use, including artificial intelligence, digital and media literacy, 
ethics, etiquette, and security. Digital citizenship includes the ability to access, analyze, 
evaluate, develop, produce, and interpret media, as well as Internet safety and cyberbullying 
prevention and response. 

Digital citizens recognize and value the rights, responsibilities, and opportunities of living, 
learning, and working in an interconnected digital world, and they engage in safe, legal, and 
ethical behaviors. Digital citizens cultivate and manage their digital identity and reputation 
and are aware of the permanence of their actions in the digital world. They advocate for 
themselves and others in their behavior, action, and choices. 

B. Media Literacy 

Media literacy is the ability to access, analyze, evaluate, create, and act using a variety of 
forms of communication, including communications developed with artificial intelligence. 
Media literacy includes the ability to understand how and why media messages and images 
are constructed and for what purposes they are used. 

Media literate citizens examine how individuals interpret messages differently based on their 
skills, beliefs, backgrounds, and experiences. They also consider how values and points of 
view are included or excluded in various media. Media literate citizens remain continually 
aware of the ways in which media can influence beliefs and behavior. In addition, media 
literate citizens are effective communicators, able to demonstrate critical and creative 



thinking as they utilize appropriate media creation tools. Further, they understand the 
conventions and characteristics of the tools they have selected. 

Media literate citizens can adapt to changing technologies and develop the new skills 
required as they continue to engage in life-long learning. Media literacy empowers 
individuals to participate as informed and active citizens in a democracy. 

Elements of Successful Implementation  

The following practices to promote digital citizenship and media literacy for all students will be 
utilized: 

A. Student Instruction 

All students will be educated regarding appropriate digital citizenship, including appropriate 
use of artificial intelligence, interacting with other individuals online. Students will receive 
digital citizenship training throughout the school year. 

In recognition of the fact that students are consumers and creators of information and ideas, 
the district promotes cross-curricular integration of digital citizenship and media literacy and 
leadership instruction at all levels. The district recognizes the importance of students as 
active participants, role models, and peer mentors in addressing the following topics: 

1. Online Safety, Responsibility, and Security 

Students will learn how to be safe and responsible digital citizens, and be educated about 
issues such as cyberbullying, social networking, online predators, and risky 
communications. Instruction on online safety, including cyberbullying 
awareness/response will be provided according to policy 2313 Electronic Information 
System, Electronic Resources, and Internet Safety.  

2. Media literacy 

Students will learn how to produce their own media; how to examine the ways in which 
people experience or interact with media differently; how to identify embedded values 
and stereotypes; how to analyze words and images critically; and how to evaluate the 
various sources of information with which they are presented. 

3. Law, Fair Use, Copyright, and Intellectual Property 

Students will learn about the importance of navigating the digital landscape in ways that 
are legal, including access to and use of copyrighted materials. Students will also learn 
how to access and create intellectual property legally. 

 



4. Online Identity and Personal Brand 

Students will learn about their “digital footprint” and the persistence of their digital 
information, including on social media. Students will also learn about the creation and 
maintenance of their self-image, reputation, and online identity. 

5. Ethics, Digital Communications, and Collaboration 

Students will learn about fairness and civil discourse in the digital environment, including 
the appropriate uses of artificial intelligence and the importance of collaborating and 
ethically interacting with others online. 

B. Professional Development 

The district endeavors to support teachers and instructional leaders in developing leadership 
skills and proficiency in the principles of digital citizenship and media literacy, both as an 
instructional imperative and as dynamic district policy and practice. 

C. Policy and Practices 

The district acknowledges the need for digital and online policies that are dynamic and 
responsive to diverse community standards and student learning outcomes. The district 
annually reviews its policies and procedures on electronic resources, Internet safety, digital 
citizenship, and media literacy. The Board authorizes the superintendent to develop further 
procedures and guidelines if appropriate. 

D. Communications and Engagement 

The district acknowledges that parents and community stakeholders are partners in 
developing students as digital citizens and life-long learners. The district encourages parents’ 
active engagement in the process of educating students to become media-literate digital 
citizens.  

 
Legal Reference: RCW 28A.650.045 Digital citizenship, internet safety, and media  

literacy – Best practices and recommendations – 
Annual review – Model policy update and checklist 
for future updates.  

RCW 28A.650.010  Definitions 
 
 
Adopted:  November 13, 2024 
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.650.045
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.650.010


2313  
INSTRUCTION  
  
Electronic Information System, Electronic Resources, and Internet Safety 
 
Acceptable Use Guidelines/Internet Safety Requirements  
  
The Board believes that students need to be proficient and safe users of information, 
media, and technology. Therefore, the district utilizes electronic communication systems 
and resources that allow exceptional opportunities for students, staff, and patrons to 
communicate, learn, access, and publish information. The Board also believes that 
students need to be proficient users of information, media, and technology to succeed in a 
digital world, and that training to become a proficient technology user is a part of their 
basic education. 
 
By creating thisproviding this system and resources, the Board intends only to provide a 
means for educational activities and does not intend to create a first amendment forum for 
free expression purposes. The district provides the property comprising the system, and 
grants access to it by users, only for the educational activities authorized under this policy 
and regulation and under the specific limitations contained therein. Any use of the system 
must be in conformity with state and/or federal law, licenses, and district policy.    
  
Unless otherwise specified, the following shall apply equally to students, employees, 
volunteers, and contractors employed by the district. Some employees, students, 
volunteers, and contractors may have additional obligations owing to the nature of their 
positions and/or privileges.  
  
The district’s system  is a combination of local and wide area networks, linking 
computers in all district facilities together and providing access to the Internet and digital 
resources. To help ensure student safety and citizenship in online activities, the district 
will provide education about appropriate behavior, including interacting with other 
individuals online, and cyberbullying awareness and response.  
  
The Board directs the superintendent or designee to provide training and procedures that 
encourage access to electronic information systems and networks by students, staff and 
patrons while establishing reasonable controls for the lawful, efficient, and appropriate 
use and management of the system.   

Electronic Resources 

The district will develop and use electronic resources as a powerful and compelling 
means for students to learn core subjects and applied skills in relevant and rigorous ways 
and for staff to educate them in such areas of need. It is the district’s goal to provide 
students with rich and ample opportunities to use technology for important purposes in 
schools just as individuals in workplaces and other real-life settings use these tools. The 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold,
Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt



district’s technology will enable educators and students to communicate, learn, share, 
collaborate and create; to think and solve problems; to manage their work; and to take 
ownership of their lives. 

The Board directs the superintendent or designee to provide training and procedures that 
encourage access to electronic resources by students, staff and patrons while establishing 
reasonable controls for the lawful, efficient, and appropriate use and management of 
electronic resources. 
 
 
The Board acknowledges that the district will allow students the opportunity to possess 
and take off-site district owned electronic devices such as laptops and Chromebooks. The 
network, the messages transmitted, and the documents created on district networks or 
devices may be subject to public disclosure under the Washington State Public Records 
Act.  Identifiable student information will be protected to the extent authorized by law. 
The district will electronically supervise the use of such property and provide guidance 
via district procedures and student and parent handbooks and guidelines. 
 
In order toTo match electronic resources as closely as possible to the approved district 
curriculum, district personnel will review and evaluate electronic resources and offer 
those which comply with guidelines listed in Board Policy policy 2310 Selection and 
Adoption of Instructional Materials.  governing the selection of instructional materials.  
 
Internet Safety  
 
To help ensure student safety and citizenship in online activities, the district will provide 
education about appropriate behavior, including digital citizenship and media literacy.  

To promote Internet safety and appropriate online behavior of students and staff as they 
use electronic resources and access material from the Internet, the superintendent or 
designee is authorized to develop or adopt Internet safety procedures, acceptable use 
guidelines, and, for students, related instructional materials. The superintendent or 
designee iIn evaluating such procedures and instructional materials, the superintendent or 
designee should take into accountconsider district electronic resources, community 
norms, privacy rights, responsible use, and issues of concern with student or staff use of 
electronic resources.  

As a component of district Internet safety measures, all district-owned electronic 
resources, including computer networks and Wi-Fi, in all district facilities capable of 
accessing the Internet must use filtering software to prevent access to obscene, racist, 
hateful, or violent material. However, given the ever-changing nature of the Internet, the 
district cannot guarantee that a student will never be able to access objectionable 
material.  

  

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt



Further, when students use the Internet from school facilities for educational purposes, 
district staff will make a reasonable effort to supervise student access and use of the 
iInternet.  If material is accessed that violates district policies, procedures, or student 
guidelines for electronic resources or acceptable use, district staff may instruct the person 
to cease using that material and/or implement sanctions consistent with district policies, 
procedures, guidelines, or student codes of conduct.  

 
  
Legal Reference: 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510   Electronic Communication Privacy Act of  
                                                             1986 (ECPA)   

Pub. L. No. 110-385 Broadband Data Improvement Act 
Pub. L. No. 106-554              Children’s Internet Protection Act   

 
 
Adopted:  November 8, 1995  
Amended:  August 22, 2001  
Amended:  May 09, 2012  
Amended:        July 11, 2018 
Amended: June 21, 2023 
Amended:        November 13, 2024 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

https://it.ojp.gov/PrivacyLiberty/authorities/statutes/1285
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-110publ385/pdf/PLAW-110publ385.pdf
https://e-ratecentral.com/Portals/0/DocFiles/files/cipa/Childrens_Internet_Protection_Act.pdf


2313  
INSTRUCTION  
  
Electronic Information System, Electronic Resources, and Internet Safety 
 
Acceptable Use Guidelines  
  
The Board believes that students need to be proficient and safe users of information, 
media, and technology. Therefore, the district utilizes electronic communication systems 
and resources that allow exceptional opportunities for students, staff, and patrons to 
communicate, learn, access, and publish information. The Board also believes that 
students need to be proficient users of information, media, and technology to succeed in a 
digital world, and that training to become a proficient technology user is a part of their 
basic education. 
 
By providing this system and resources, the Board intends only to provide a means for 
educational activities and does not intend to create a first amendment forum for free 
expression purposes. The district provides the property comprising the system, and grants 
access to it by users, only for the educational activities authorized under this policy and 
regulation and under the specific limitations contained therein. Any use of the system 
must be in conformity with state and/or federal law, licenses, and district policy.    
  
Unless otherwise specified, the following shall apply equally to students, employees, 
volunteers, and contractors employed by the district. Some employees, students, 
volunteers, and contractors may have additional obligations owing to the nature of their 
positions and/or privileges.  
  
The district’s system is a combination of local and wide area networks, linking computers 
in all district facilities together and providing access to the Internet and digital resources.  
  
The Board directs the superintendent or designee to provide training and procedures that 
encourage access to electronic information systems and networks by students, staff and 
patrons while establishing reasonable controls for the lawful, efficient, and appropriate 
use and management of the system.   

Electronic Resources 

The district will develop and use electronic resources as a powerful and compelling 
means for students to learn core subjects and applied skills in relevant and rigorous ways 
and for staff to educate them in such areas of need. It is the district’s goal to provide 
students with rich and ample opportunities to use technology for important purposes in 
schools just as individuals in workplaces and other real-life settings use these tools. The 
district’s technology will enable educators and students to communicate, learn, share, 
collaborate and create; to think and solve problems; to manage their work; and to take 
ownership of their lives. 



The Board directs the superintendent or designee to provide training and procedures that 
encourage access to electronic resources by students, staff and patrons while establishing 
reasonable controls for the lawful, efficient, and appropriate use and management of 
electronic resources. 
 
The Board acknowledges that the district will allow students the opportunity to possess 
and take off-site district owned electronic devices such as laptops and Chromebooks. The 
network, the messages transmitted, and the documents created on district networks or 
devices may be subject to public disclosure under the Washington State Public Records 
Act.  Identifiable student information will be protected to the extent authorized by law. 
The district will electronically supervise the use of such property and provide guidance 
via district procedures and student and parent handbooks and guidelines. 
 
To match electronic resources as closely as possible to the approved district curriculum, 
district personnel will review and evaluate electronic resources and offer those which 
comply with guidelines listed in policy 2310 Selection and Adoption of Instructional 
Materials.   
 
Internet Safety  
 
To help ensure student safety and citizenship in online activities, the district will provide 
education about appropriate behavior, including digital citizenship and media literacy.  

To promote Internet safety and appropriate online behavior of students and staff as they 
use electronic resources and access material from the Internet, the superintendent or 
designee is authorized to develop or adopt Internet safety procedures, acceptable use 
guidelines, and, for students, related instructional materials. In evaluating such 
procedures and instructional materials, the superintendent or designee should consider 
district electronic resources, community norms, privacy rights, responsible use, and 
issues of concern with student or staff use of electronic resources.  

As a component of district Internet safety measures, all district-owned electronic 
resources, including computer networks and Wi-Fi, in all district facilities capable of 
accessing the Internet must use filtering software to prevent access to obscene, racist, 
hateful, or violent material. However, given the ever-changing nature of the Internet, the 
district cannot guarantee that a student will never be able to access objectionable 
material.  

Further, when students use the Internet from school facilities for educational purposes, 
district staff will make a reasonable effort to supervise student access and use of the 
Internet.  If material is accessed that violates district policies, procedures, or student 
guidelines for electronic resources or acceptable use, district staff may instruct the person 
to cease using that material and/or implement sanctions consistent with district policies, 
procedures, guidelines, or student codes of conduct.  



 
Legal Reference: 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510   Electronic Communication Privacy Act of  
                                                             1986 (ECPA)   

Pub. L. No. 110-385 Broadband Data Improvement Act 
Pub. L. No. 106-554 Children’s Internet Protection Act   

 
 
Adopted:  November 8, 1995  
Amended:  August 22, 2001  
Amended:  May 09, 2012  
Amended:        July 11, 2018 
Amended: June 21, 2023 
Amended:        November 13, 2024 

https://it.ojp.gov/PrivacyLiberty/authorities/statutes/1285
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-110publ385/pdf/PLAW-110publ385.pdf
https://e-ratecentral.com/Portals/0/DocFiles/files/cipa/Childrens_Internet_Protection_Act.pdf

	11 13 24 Agenda School Board Meeting
	CONSENT ITEMS
	Minutes of School Board Meeting October 23, 2024
	Personnel Actions - Certificated
	Personnel Actions - Classified
	Personnel Actions - Extracurricular
	Budget Status Report Ending 08 31 24
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending 08 31 24
	Resolution No. 1, 2024-25 Accept Tri-Tech Skills Center Building Project C as Complete
	Resolution No. 2, 2024-25 Accept Tri-Tech Skills Center Building C Project Commissioning Report

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	Children's Reading Foundation of the Mid-Columbia
	School Improvement Plan Monitoring Processes
	Choice Schools and Programs
	2025 Legislative Priorities

	NEW BUSINESS
	Policy No. 2315 INSTRUCTION: Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy
	Policy No. 2313 INSSTRUCTION: Electronic Resources and Internet Safety




